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City Council 
City of Hilliard 
3800 Municipal Way 
Hilliard, Ohio 43026 
 
 
We have reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report of the City of Hilliard, Franklin County, 
prepared by Wilson, Shannon & Snow, Inc., for the audit period January 1, 2017 through 
December 31, 2017.  Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit 
required by Section 117.11, Revised Code.  The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying 
financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on 
them.  In conjunction with the work performed by the Independent Public Accountant, the 
Auditor of State is issuing the following:   
 
FINDING FOR RECOVERY REPAID UNDER AUDIT 
 
City Council Ordinance No. 05-65 (as amended) Section 4, states, in part, that the compensation 
for Council Members shall be $7,500 per year.  Section 5 further states that if any such member 
elects health insurance coverage, then the annual compensation amounts paid to that member as 
set forth above shall be reduced by $1,000, and such member shall make a monthly contribution 
toward health care coverage in the same amounts as required from the non-union, non-contract 
personnel. 
 
During 2017, three Council Members enrolled in the City’s health insurance coverage did not have 
their salaries reduced as prescribed above, resulting in Thomas Baker, Frank Carrier Jr., and John 
Uttley III each being overpaid by $1,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017. 
 
In accordance with the forgoing facts and pursuant to Ohio Rev. Code § 117.28, a Finding for 
Recovery for public monies illegally expended in favor of the City’s Insurance Trust Fund was 
issued against Thomas Baker, Frank Carrier Jr., and John Uttley III, individually, in the amount of 
$1,000 each. On April 30, 2018 John Uttley III repaid $1,000, on May 14, 2018 Thomas Baker 
repaid $1,000, and on June 20, 2018 Frank Carrier Jr. repaid $1,000, which were all posted to the 
City’s Insurance Trust Fund. 
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FINDING FOR RECOVERY PARTIALLY REPAID UNDER AUDIT 
 
Former Deputy Director of the Recreation and Parks Department, Heather Ernst, was responsible 
for receiving daily gate admission receipts and making daily cash deposits for the City’s two pools.  
Ms. Ernst had been the Deputy Director since 2012 until she resigned on November 1, 2017. 
 
The City of Hilliard Police Department was informed that Ms. Ernst was making excessive cash 
deposits into her personal bank account during the summer months of June, July, and August.  As 
a result, the Police Department opened an investigation to determine whether the daily gate 
admission receipts from the City’s two pools were deposited in a City account. 
 
On March 8, 2018, Ms. Ernst was indicted on one count of Theft in Office, one count of Theft, 
two counts of Tampering with Records, and four counts of Filing Incomplete, False, and 
Fraudulent Tax Returns in Franklin County Common Pleas Court Case No. 18CR 000052. 
 
On October 3, 2018, Ms. Ernst entered a plea of guilty to one count of Theft in Office, a felony of 
the third degree, as well as one count of Attempted Tampering with Records, a felony of the fourth 
degree, before the Honorable David E. Cain of Franklin County Court of Common Pleas in the 
above cited case. 
 
On November 16, 2018, at sentencing for the conviction, Judge Cain entered an Order of restitution 
in the amount of $271,898 against Ms. Ernst and in favor of the City of Hilliard. 
 
In accordance with the foregoing court Order and pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 117.28, 
a finding for recovery for public property which has been converted or misappropriated is hereby 
issued against Heather Ernst for $271,898 in favor of the City’s General Fund.   
 
On December 6, 2018, a restitution payment of $162,081.59 was issued to the City by the Franklin 
County Court of Common Pleas.  Accordingly, we considered this a partial repayment of the 
finding and a balance of $109,816.41 remains unpaid. 
 
On March 15, 2018, the City of Hilliard filed a Complaint against Ms. Ernst in Franklin County 
Common Pleas Court Case No. 18 CV 002320, alleging Fraud, Conversion, Civil Conspiracy, 
Theft/Embezzlement, Breach of Fiduciary Duty, Accounting, and Fraudulent Transfer as a result 
of the conduct which resulted in the above criminal conviction and restitution Order. The pending 
civil suit between the City of Hilliard and Ms. Ernst could result in an additional finding for 
recovery against Ms. Ernst and in favor of the City of Hilliard. 
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Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by 
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor 
of State, regulations and grant requirements.  The City of Hilliard is responsible for compliance 
with these laws and regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Keith Faber 
Auditor of State 
Columbus, Ohio 
 
March 14, 2019  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

srbabbitt
Keith Faber



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 



 
 

CITY OF HILLIARD 
FRANKLIN COUNTY 

 
 
 TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 
TITLE             PAGE 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
  REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED 
  BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS       1 
 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS          3 
 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN        7 
 
                            



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

City of Hilliard  
Franklin County 
3800 Municipal Way  
Hilliard, Ohio 43026 
 
To the City Council and Management: 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the 
Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards,  the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Hilliard, Franklin County, (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated June 22, 2018. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
As part of our financial statement audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances to the extent necessary 
to support our opinions on the financial statements, but not to the extent necessary to opine on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we have not opined on it 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies.  Therefore, unidentified material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist.  
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings we identified certain deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting, that we consider material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 
  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct 
misstatements. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of internal control deficiencies 
resulting in a reasonable possibility that internal control will not prevent or detect and timely correct a 
material misstatement of the City’s financial statements.  We consider findings 2017-001, 2017-002, and 
2017-004 described in the accompanying schedule of findings to be material weaknesses.  
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A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of internal control deficiencies less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  We consider 
finding 2017-003 and 2017-005 described in the accompanying schedule of findings to be significant 
deficiencies.  

Compliance and Other Matters 
 

As part of reasonably assuring whether the City’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement 
amounts.  However, opining on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance 
or other matters we must report under Government Auditing Standards which is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings as item 2017-004.  
 
City’s Response to Findings 

 
The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying corrective 
action plan.  We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  
 
Purpose of this Report 

 
This report only describes the scope of our internal control and compliance testing and our testing results, and 
does not opine on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed under Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 

Newark, Ohio 
June 22, 2018
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CITY OF HILLIARD 
FRANKLIN COUNTY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 
 

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS 

 
Finding Number 2017-001 

 
Internal Controls – Parks and Recreation – General Cash Receipt Procedures – Material Weakness 
 
Establishing consistent internal controls to account for swimming pool cash receipts will help reduce the 
risk of uncollected revenues or misappropriation of money collected. Current receipt procedures include 
the reconciliation of cash received and recorded by cash registers, completion of daily cash reports, 
preparation of deposit tickets and depositing of funds, and providing all documentation to the Finance 
Department for review and posting to the accounting system.   
 
Based on testing performed we noted the following items which may increase monitoring and reduce the 
risk of funds being lost, misappropriated, or used for an improper purpose:   
 

● The City has not implemented proper segregation of duties as it relates to collecting cash, preparing 
daily reports, and depositing money collected with the bank. Money is placed in a locked safe prior 
to deposit with the bank.  The City should develop a policy as it relates segregation of duties to 
collect funds, deposit funds and provide explanations for any variances and determine that all funds 
are properly accounted for. Consideration should be given to rotating personnel working at the cash 
register hourly or daily which may add to a level of segregation.     

 
● The City should research and determine if it would be cost beneficial to purchase security cameras 

to review daily transactions which occur at the swimming pool.  This may increase the level of 
control over cash collections and decrease the likelihood of theft or misappropriation of funds.    

 
 ● The City has not developed procedures to identify and account for voided or “No-Sale” transactions 

on cash register tapes or memorandum adjustments to RecTrac reports for corrections made during 
the business day. Procedures should be developed to identify and resolve “No-Sale” transactions 
or memorandum adjustments to RecTrac reports. Individuals independent of the employee who has 
entered transactions should review and determine on irregularities exist evidenced by the applicable 
supervisor/employee signature.   

 
 ● Management should consider incorporating other items into the daily review process to determine 

the reasonableness and accuracy of swimming pool sales for the day. This would include 
identifying the total number of swimming pool walk-ins, memberships, discounts, or free-pass 
residents that have used the swimming pool.   

 
We recommend the City consider the above items concerning general cash receipt collection procedures in 
order to enhance and improve upon current operating procedures.  
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CITY OF HILLIARD 
FRANKLIN COUNTY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 
 

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS 

 
Finding Number 2017-002 

 
Internal Controls – Parks and Recreation – Financial Reporting Procedures – Material Weakness  
 
The Parks and Recreation Department utilizes the RecTrac Accounting System to account for recreation 
center transactions (which includes purchasing of pool memberships but not daily pool gate admissions). 
The Parks and Recreation Department will generate daily reports supporting cash receipts which are then 
provided to the Finance Department for subsequent posting to the accounting system. Based on testing 
performed we noted the following items the City should consider implementing:  
 

● The Parks and Recreation Department currently does not reconcile monthly cash collections 
recorded within the RecTrac Accounting System to the monthly financial reports generated by the 
Finance Department to determine if any discrepancies exist. It is the Parks and Recreation 
Department’s responsibility to verify that no discrepancies exist based on amounts posted by the 
Finance Department. 

 
● The City should consider implementing RecTrac software at the two pool locations to improve 

tracking of daily activity (including gate admission sales) as well as provide for an improved daily 
reconciliation process.  

 
● The Parks and Recreation Department should provide training to all users of the RecTrac 

Accounting System on an annual basis. Providing this training may benefit management of the City 
by ensuring that information generated on a daily and monthly basis is consistent and that refunds, 
credits, overpayments, and variances are consistently processed and explained.  Furthermore, this 
may provide management the means to identify unusual fluctuations in revenues based on 
attendance and revenues collected.   

 
We recommend the City review its current procedures governing Parks and Recreation financial reporting 
to ensure information generated is accurate, properly reported, and collections agree to City ledgers. We 
also recommend the City implement RecTrac or other POS system at the pool locations to improve tracking, 
reporting, and reconciliation procedures over daily activity at those locations.  
 
Finding Number 2017-003 

 
Internal Controls – Swimming Pool Memberships – Significant Deficiency 
 
Swimming Pool memberships may be purchased through the City’s website or at the City and rates are 
assigned based on the applicant’s residency status. The Recreation Department will review applications 
purchased on-line or at the City to determine the proper rate to be applied based on residency status and is 
determined by 1) Pay City of Hilliard property taxes which can be verified on the Franklin County Auditor’s 
website or 2) Pay $150 in income taxes to the City of Hilliard between January and July of that current year 
which can be verified by current pay stubs or with the City’s Income Tax Administrator. 
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CITY OF HILLIARD 
FRANKLIN COUNTY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 
 

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS 

 
Finding Number 2017-003 (Continued) 

 
Internal Controls – Swimming Pool Memberships – Significant Deficiency – (Continued) 
 
We noted five instances in which improper rates were charged. Three of the instances relate to improper 
residency status applied; one instance related to early bird discount being applied after the deadline with no 
explanation provided; and one had improper rate applied with no explanation. 
 
As noted, there were three instances in which residency status was improperly indicated on the member’s 
account (i.e. per the Franklin County Auditor’s website, property were not in the City of Hilliard taxing 
district).  
 
We recommend procedures are developed to review the identification and assignment of residency/non-
residency rates to determine rates assigned are consistent with City fee schedules.  
 
Finding Number 2017-004 

 
Timeliness of Deposits – Material Weakness/Noncompliance  
 
Ohio Revised Code Section 9.38 states public money must be deposited with the treasurer of the public 
office or to a designated depository on the business day following the day of receipt. Public money collected 
for other public offices must be deposited by the first business day following the date of receipt. 
 
For example, a City employee, other than the City Finance Director, collecting funds and issuing a receipt, 
must deposit the funds with the City Finance Department on the business day following the day of receipt. 
As an alternative to depositing the funds with the City Finance Director, the employee instead may deposit 
funds with the government’s designated depository on the business day following the day of receipt. 
 
If the amount of daily receipts does not exceed $1,000 and the receipts can be safeguarded, public offices 
may adopt a policy permitting their officials who receive this money to hold it past the next business day, 
but the deposit must be made no later than three business days after receiving it. If the public office is 
governed by a legislative authority (counties, municipalities, townships, and school districts), only the 
legislative authority may adopt the policy. The policy must include provisions and procedures to safeguard 
the money during the intervening period. If the amount exceeds $1,000 or a lesser amount cannot be 
safeguarded, the public official must then deposit the money on the first business day following the date of 
receipt. 
 
The Ohio Revised Code does not require the public official to deposit receipts with the designated 
depository on the business day following the day of receipt, or any other specific time. However, if the 
public official is holding significant amounts of cash and checks for an unreasonable period, the City should 
address the internal controls related to timely deposits of public funds. 
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CITY OF HILLIARD 
FRANKLIN COUNTY 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 
 

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS 

 
Finding Number 2017-004 (Continued) 

 
Timeliness of Deposits – Material Weakness/Noncompliance – (Continued)  
 
Specific to calendar year 2017, we noted swimming pool deposits were not made timely to the City’s 
financial institution (variances ranged from two to seven days) and a formal policy has not been adopted. 
Our testing also identified a swimming pool gate deposit of $3,688.25 made in November 2017 for which 
we were unable to determine the original collection date.  Finally, it was brought to our attention that in 
prior years swimming pool collections were not timely deposited or may never deposited with the City’s 
financial institution.   
 
We recommend the City solidify procedures governing the deposit of public money so as to ensure monies 
are not being deposited at the City Parks and Recreation or swimming pool offices. 
 
Finding Number 2017-005 

 
Financial Reporting – Significant Deficiency  
 
The compilation and presentation of the financial statements and the related footnotes is the responsibility 
of management. This responsibility remains intact if management decides to outsource this function for 
efficiency purposes or any other reason.  Based on our audit we identified the following audit adjustments:  
 
● Resolution 17-R-102 requires income taxes received to be allocated sixty-five percent and twenty-five 

percent to the General and Street Improvement Municipal Tax Funds.  When calculating income taxes 
receivable, unavailable revenue, accounts payable and income taxes revenue within the General and 
Street Improvement Municipal Tax Funds, the City applied percentages contrary to Resolution 17-R-
102. This resulted in audit adjustments to decrease the General Fund and increase the Street 
Improvement Municipal Tax Fund by $400,599, $205,585, $184,991, $5,851, and $10,023 to income 
taxes receivable, unavailable revenue, income tax revenue, accounts payable and due to others, 
respectively.   

 
● We identified an unrecorded accounts payable within the Street Municipal tax Capital Improvement 

Fund of $468,083.  
 
● Original budget receipts within the General Fund and Capital Improvement Fund did not agree to the 

first amended certificate certified by the Franklin County Budget Commission.  An audit adjustment 
was necessary to decrease estimated receipts by $3,500,000 within the General Fund and an increase 
estimated receipts by $3,500,000 within the Capital Improvements Fund.   

 
The accompanying basic financial statements and schedules have been adjusted to reflect these adjustments.  

 
We recommend the City develop procedures related to the preparation of the basic financial statements 
which may assist in reducing the potential for errors and omissions.  
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1

City of Hilliard
Franklin County 
3800 Municipal Way 
Hilliard, Ohio 43026 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council and Management: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hilliard, Franklin County, 
Ohio (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly 
presenting financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
financial audit standards in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing 
Standards. Those standards require us to plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The 
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial 
statement misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider 
internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the extent 
needed to opine on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting 
policies and the reasonableness of their significant accounting estimates, as well as our 
evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. 

We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit 
opinions. 
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hilliard, Franklin County, thereof and the 
respective budgetary comparisons for the General, Street Maintenance and Repair, Street 
Improvement Municipal Tax, Water and Sewer Revenue and TIF Funds thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation 
to include Management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of net pension liabilities and 
pension contributions listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, consisting of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, to the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not opine or provide any assurance on 
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to opine 
or provide any other assurance.  

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted to opine on the City’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.   

The introductory section, the financial section’s combining statements, individual fund statements 
and schedules and the statistical section information present additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.   

The statements and schedules are management’s responsibility, and derive from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  We subjected these statements and schedules to the auditing procedures we applied 
to the basic financial statements.  We also applied certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling statements and schedules directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, these statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects 
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.  

We did not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion or any other assurance on them.  
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 
22, 2018 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and 
other matters. That report describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial 
reporting and compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Newark, Ohio 
June 22, 2018  





CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 
Unaudited

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

USING THIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities 



REPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental Funds 

Proprietary Fund – 

Fiduciary Funds – 



THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Total Net Position

Table 1
Net Position

Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions—an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27

net pension liability



as against the 
public employer

change



Revenues

Total program revenues

Total general revenues

Total revenues

Expenses

Total expenses
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

Changes in Net Position
Table 2



Table 3



Governmental Activities



THE CITY’S GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets 

Table 4
Capital Assets at Year-End



Debt

Table 5
Outstanding Debt

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCE DEPARTMENT 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and investments 36,885,093$     
Accounts receivable 325,858            
Municipal income tax receivable 5,722,845         
Due from other governments 1,204,488         
Payments in lieu of taxes receivable 4,908,184         
Prepaid items 71,894              
Property and other local taxes receivable  1,511,893         
Nondepreciable capital assets 19,009,601       
Depreciable capital assets, net 229,009,381

Total assets 298,649,237

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charges on refunding 1,938,635         
Pensions 6,946,135

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,884,770

Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,743,035         
Accrued liabilities 290,000            
Accrued wages payable 292,551            
Matured compensated absences 294,851            
Due to other governments 215,769            
Accrued interest payable 145,807            
Claims payable 452,000            
Unearned revenue 351,640            
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 5,568,895         
Due in more than one year:

Net pension liabilities 23,907,285       
Other amounts due more than one year   58,800,947

Total liabilities 92,062,780

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Property taxes levied for next year 1,480,961         
Payments in lieu of taxes levied for next year 4,908,184         
Pensions 421,736

Total deferred inflows of resources 6,810,881

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 187,490,079     
Restricted for:

Streets and transportation 7,100,656         
Capital outlay 9,431,309         
Other purposes 381,186            

Unrestricted 4,257,116

Total net position 208,660,346$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

December 31, 2017
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CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

Street Street
Maintenance Improvement

General and Repair Municipal Tax
Assets

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 16,224,113$    1,652,380$    2,886,127$      
Receivables:

Property and other local taxes 1,511,893        -                     -                       
Payments in lieu of taxes -                       -                     -                       
Municipal income taxes 3,719,849        -                     572,285           
Accounts 140,974           1,842             -                       

Due from other funds 48,152             -                     -                       
Due from other governments 251,869           728,406         -                       
Prepaid items 71,894             -                     -                       
Interfund receivable 188,885 - -

Total assets 22,157,629$  2,382,628$  3,458,412$

Liabilities
Accounts payable 492,800$         40,933$         522,041$         
Accrued liabilities 290,000           -                     -                       
Due to other funds 386,491           30,122           -                       
Interfund payable -                       -                     -                       
Accrued wages payable 251,288           10,410           -                       
Matured compensated absences 275,883           4,742             -                       
Due to other governments 185,448           7,658             -                       
Unearned revenue 351,640 - -

Total liabilities 2,233,550 93,865 522,041

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes levied for next year 1,480,961        -                     -                       
Payments in lieu of taxes levied for next year -                       -                     -                       
Unavailable revenue 2,216,834 485,973 293,694

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,697,795 485,973 293,694

Fund balances
Nonspendable 71,894             -                     -                       
Restricted -                       1,802,790      -                       
Committed 83,789             -                     2,642,677        
Assigned 7,046,953        -                     -                       
Unassigned (deficit) 9,023,648 - -

Total fund balances 16,226,284 1,802,790 2,642,677

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances 22,157,629$  2,382,628$  3,458,412$

   

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

December 31, 2017



Water Capital Nonmajor Total
and Sewer Improvement Governmental Governmental
Revenue TIF Municipal Tax Funds Funds

1,719,340$         4,169,753$         8,325,182$         1,631,090$         36,607,985$       

-                          -                          -                          -                          1,511,893           
-                          4,908,184           -                          -                          4,908,184           
-                          -                          1,430,711           -                          5,722,845           

46,715                -                          -                          136,327              325,858              
-                          -                          -                          -                          48,152                
-                          103,495              -                          120,718              1,204,488           
-                          -                          -                          -                          71,894                
- - - - 188,885

1,766,055$  9,181,432$  9,755,893$  1,888,135$  50,590,184$

72,374$              -$                        324,584$            290,303$            1,743,035$         
-                          -                          -                          -                          290,000              

55,718                -                          -                          27,859                500,190              
-                          -                          -                          188,885              188,885              

20,820                -                          -                          10,033                292,551              
9,484                  -                          -                          4,742                  294,851              

15,316                -                          -                          7,347                  215,769              
- - - - 351,640

173,712 - 324,584 529,169 3,876,921

-                          -                          -                          -                          1,480,961           
-                          4,908,184           -                          -                          4,908,184           
- 103,495 734,233 79,510 3,913,739
- 5,011,679 734,233 79,510 10,302,884

-                          -                          -                          -                          71,894                
-                          4,169,753           8,697,076           640,608              15,310,227         

1,592,343           -                          -                          838,561              5,157,370           
-                          -                          -                          -                          7,046,953           
- - - (199,713) 8,823,935

1,592,343 4,169,753 8,697,076 1,279,456 36,410,379

1,766,055$  9,181,432$  9,755,893$  1,888,135$  50,590,184$





Total governmental fund balances $ 36,410,379      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. 248,018,982

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are unavailable in the funds. 3,913,739        

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of certain activities to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net position. 277,146           

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and loans payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Bonds payable (54,155,568)      
OWDA loans payable (741,478)           
OPWC loans payable (2,238,947)        
Capital lease payable (5,331,545)        
Compensated absences payable (1,902,304) (64,369,842)     

Accrued interest on long-term debt is not reported in the funds. (145,807)          

Deferred outflows of resources from losses on refunding are amortized over the
life of the bonds and are not reported in the funds. 1,938,635        

The net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period; therefore, the
liability and related deferred inflows/outflows are not reported in the governmental
funds:

Deferred outflows - pensions 6,946,135         
Deferred inflows - pensions (421,736)           
Net pension liability (23,907,285) (17,382,886)
`

Net position of governmental activities $ 208,660,346

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to

December 31, 2017
Net Position of Governmental Activities



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Street Street
Maintenance Improvement

General and Repair Municipal Tax
Revenues

Property and other local taxes 1,528,261$         -$                        -$                      
Municipal income taxes 18,030,859         -                          2,927,266         
Payment in lieu of taxes -                          -                          -                        
Intergovernmental 519,026              1,523,310            -                        
Charges for services 4,062,353           -                          -                        
Licenses and permits 1,378,191           -                          -                        
Fines and forfeitures 261,207              -                          -                        
Investment income 319,892              9,415                   -                        
Miscellaneous 127,292 48,325 2,480

Total revenues 26,227,081 1,581,050 2,929,746

Expenditures
Current:

General government 5,537,966           -                          57,725              
Security of persons and property 9,522,527           -                          -                        
Public health 256,406              -                          -                        
Leisure time activities 3,247,217           -                          -                        
Community environment 3,695,283           -                          -                        
Basic utility services -                          -                          -                        
Transportation -                          1,150,172            2,313,803         

Debt Service:
  Principal retirement -                          -                          171,400            
  Interest and fiscal charges -                          -                          128,550            
  Issuance costs - - -

Total expenditures 22,259,399 1,150,172 2,671,478

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures 3,967,682 430,878 258,268

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of capital assets 10,452                -                          -                        
General obligation bonds issued -                          -                          -                        
Premium on bonds issued -                          -                          -                        
Transfers in -                          -                          -                        
Transfers out (3,500,000) - -

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,489,548) - -

Net change in fund balances 478,134              430,878               258,268            

Fund balance, beginning of year 15,748,150 1,371,912 2,384,409
Fund balance, end of year 16,226,284$  1,802,790$  2,642,677$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017



Water Capital Nonmajor Total
and Sewer Improvement Governmental Governmental
Revenue TIF Municipal Tax Funds Funds

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         1,528,261$          
-                           -                           6,983,141            -                           27,941,266          
-                           7,201,942            -                           -                           7,201,942            
-                           220,072               23,123                 3,115,846            5,401,377            

1,799,729            -                           -                           1,330,124            7,192,206            
-                           -                           422,000               112,930               1,913,121            
-                           -                           -                           142,692               403,899               
-                           -                           -                           3,369                   332,676               

10,557 - 35,800 23,970 248,424
1,810,286 7,422,014 7,464,064 4,728,931 52,163,172

-                           2,738,422            1,988,049            20,963                 10,343,125          
-                           -                           275,249               95,993                 9,893,769            
-                           -                           -                           -                           256,406               
-                           -                           2,880,330            983,022               7,110,569            
-                           -                           181,400               -                           3,876,683            

1,828,847            -                           957,726               707,289               3,493,862            
-                           1,570,172            1,912,465            2,792,692            9,739,304            

221,000               1,507,000            9,126,842            -                           11,026,242          
68,817                 431,268               1,442,289            -                           2,070,924            

- - 104,753 - 104,753
2,118,664 6,246,862 18,869,103 4,599,959 57,915,637

(308,378) 1,175,152 (11,405,039) 128,972 (5,752,465)

-                           -                           700                      -                           11,152                 
-                           -                           4,655,000            -                           4,655,000            
-                           -                           453,669               -                           453,669               
-                           -                           3,500,000 -                           3,500,000            
- - - - (3,500,000)
- - 8,609,369 - 5,119,821

(308,378)              1,175,152            (2,795,670)           128,972               (632,644)              

1,900,721 2,994,601 11,492,746 1,150,484 37,043,023
1,592,343$  4,169,753$  8,697,076$  1,279,456$  36,410,379$





Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (632,644)            

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense:

Capital asset additions 5,984,270          
Depreciation expense (12,405,090)       

Governmental funds do not report the revenue from the contribution of capital assets since
they do not represent current financial resources. However, the revenue is reported in the
Statement of Activities as capital contributions. 5,119,224          

In the statement of activities, loss on disposal of capital assets is reported, whereas
only proceeds from sales are reported in the funds. (907,922)            

Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds. 1,245,850          

Internal service funds are used to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds.
The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental
activities. 78,065               

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensated absences (146,788)            
Interest on long-term debt 76,360               
Amortization of bond premiums 445,471             
Net change in deferred loss on refunding (222,136)            

Repayment of long-term obligations is reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces the long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the
current year, these amounts consisted of general obligations bonds, OWDA and OPWC
loans, and capital leases. 11,026,242        

The issuance of general obligations bonds and premiums are recorded as other financing
sources in the governmental funds, but are used to increase bonds payable on the statement
of net position. (5,108,669)         

Contractually required contributions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds; however
the statement of net position reports these amounts as deferred outflows. 1,850,510          

Except for amounts reported as deferred inflows/outflows, changes in the net pension liability are
reported as pension expense in the statement of activities. (3,887,784)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 2,514,959

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund

Variance
From Final

Original Final Actual Budget

Revenues:
Property and other local taxes 1,551,818$ 1,551,818$ 1,532,877$ (18,941)$
Municipal income taxes 13,277,951 16,777,951 19,207,845 2,429,894
Intergovernmental 579,656 579,656 524,489        (55,167)
Charges for services 4,033,766 4,033,766 3,427,944 (605,822)
Licenses and permits 951,100 951,100 1,353,816 402,716
Fines and forfeitures 350,000 350,000 261,207        (88,793)
Investment income 78,000 78,000 319,892        241,892
Miscellaneous 79,000 79,000 115,173 36,173

Total revenues 20,901,291 24,401,291 26,743,243 2,341,952

Expenditures:
Current:
  General government 9,862,887   10,547,262 8,000,499    2,546,763
  Security of persons and property 10,360,906 10,563,906 9,806,340    757,566
  Public health 260,876      260,876      257,183        3,693
  Leisure time activities 3,561,582   3,561,582   3,352,400    209,182
  Community environment 3,644,156 3,644,156 3,401,954 242,202

Total expenditures 27,690,407 28,577,782 24,818,376 3,759,406

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (6,789,116) (4,176,491) 1,924,867 6,101,358

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of assets 6,000          6,000          10,452          4,452
Transfers in 309,031      309,031      302,049        (6,982)
Transfers out - (3,802,049) (3,802,049) -

Total other financing sources (uses) 315,031 (3,487,018) (3,489,548) (2,530)

Net change in fund balance (6,474,085) (7,663,509) (1,564,681) 6,098,828$

Fund balance, beginning of year 11,455,276 11,455,276 11,455,276
Prior year encumbrances appropriated* 3,294,282 3,294,282 3,294,282
Fund balance, end of year 8,275,473$ 7,086,049$ 13,184,877$
* restated

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Street Maintenance and Repair Fund

Variance
From Final

Original Final Actual Budget

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 1,350,500$  1,350,500$  1,516,279$  165,779$
Investment income 600             600             9,415           8,815
Miscellaneous 40,000 40,000 47,171 7,171

Total revenues 1,391,100 1,391,100 1,572,865 181,765

Expenditures:
Current:
  Transportation 2,312,577 2,312,577 1,716,325 596,252

Total expenditures 2,312,577 2,312,577 1,716,325 596,252

Net change in fund balance (921,477)     (921,477)     (143,460)    778,017$

Fund balance, beginning of year 746,737      746,737      746,737
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 619,378 619,378 619,378
Fund balance, end of year 444,638$ 444,638$ 1,222,655$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Street Improvement Municipal Tax Fund

Variance
From Final

Original Final Actual Budget

Revenues:
Municipal income taxes 2,581,223$   2,581,223$   2,953,714$   372,491$
Miscellaneous - - 2,480 2,480

Total revenues 2,581,223 2,581,223 2,956,194 374,971

Expenditures:
Current:
  General government 174,000      310,875      282,595      28,280
  Transportation 3,208,743   3,208,743   3,108,729   100,014
Debt Service 300,000 300,000 299,950 50

Total expenditures 3,682,743 3,819,618 3,691,274 128,344

Net change in fund balance (1,101,520)  (1,238,395)  (735,080)    503,315$

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,829,750   1,829,750   1,829,750
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 527,743 527,743 527,743
Fund balance, end of year 1,255,973$ 1,119,098$ 1,622,413$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Water and Sewer Revenue Fund

Variance
From Final

Original Final Actual Budget

Revenues:
Charges for services 1,920,000$   1,920,000$   1,794,864$   (125,136)$
Miscellaneous 150,000 150,000 9,756 (140,244)

Total revenues 2,070,000 2,070,000 1,804,620 (265,380)

Expenditures:
Current:
  Basic utility services 3,106,341   3,106,341   2,298,202   808,139
Debt Service 290,000 290,000 289,817 183

Total expenditures 3,396,341 3,396,341 2,588,019 808,322

Net change in fund balance (1,326,341)  (1,326,341)  (783,399)    542,942$

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,370,313   1,370,313   1,370,313
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 598,215 598,215 598,215
Fund balance, end of year 642,187$ 642,187$ 1,185,129$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
TIF Fund

Variance
From Final

Original Final Actual Budget

Revenues:
Payment in lieu of taxes -$                  4,460,000$   7,201,942$   2,741,942$
Intergovernmental - 227,000 220,072 (6,928)

Total revenues - 4,687,000 7,422,014 2,735,014

Expenditures:
Current:
  General Government -                  1,638,300   1,633,351   4,949
  Transportation 4,118          2,680,618   2,679,361   1,257
Debt Service 1,500,000 1,939,000 1,938,269 731

Total expenditures 1,504,118 6,257,918 6,250,981 6,937

Net change in fund balance (1,504,118) (1,570,918) 1,171,033 2,741,951$

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,990,484   2,990,484   2,990,484
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 4,118 4,118 4,118
Fund balance, end of year 1,490,484$ 1,423,684$ 4,165,635$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Fund

Insurance
Trust

Assets
Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 277,108$
Due from other funds 452,038

Total assets 729,146

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Claims payable 452,000

Total liabilities 452,000

Net Position
Unrestricted 277,146

Total net position 277,146$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Fund

Insurance
Trust

Operating Revenues
Charges for services 2,431,646$

Operating Expenses
Claims 2,353,581

Change in net position 78,065
Net position beginning of year 199,081
Net position end of year 277,146$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Fund

Insurance
Trust

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers 2,107,302$
Cash payments for claims (2,029,581)

Net cash from operating activities 77,721         

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 199,387
Cash and cash equivalents end of year 277,108$

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash from
operating activities:

Operating income 78,065$

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
from operating activities:

Change in due from other funds (324,344)
Change in claims payable 324,000

Net cash from operating activities 77,721$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 420,420$
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts 24,732
Accounts receivable 23,753

Total assets 468,905$

Liabilities
Due to other governments 404,577$
Deposits held and due to others 64,328

Total liabilities 468,905$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY AND REPORTING ENTITY 

Reporting Entity 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

A. Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 

B. Fund Accounting 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

B. Fund Accounting - continued

Governmental Funds 

General Fund

Street Maintenance and Repair Fund

Street Improvement Municipal Tax Fund

Water and Sewer Revenue Fund

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Fund

Capital Improvement Municipal Tax Fund



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

B. Fund Accounting - continued

Proprietary Fund 

Internal Service Fund

Fiduciary Funds 

C. Measurement Focus 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

C. Measurement Focus - continued

D. Basis of Accounting 

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

D. Basis of Accounting - continued

Expenses/Expenditures 

E. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Certain External Investment Pools and Pool 
Participants



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

E.  Cash and Cash Equivalents - continued

F. Prepaid Items 

G. Bond Premium, Deferred Charges on Refunding, and Debt Issuance Costs 

H. Capital Assets 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

H. Capital Assets - continued

I. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

J. Unearned Revenue



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

K. Pensions 

L. Compensated Absences 

M. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

N. Contributions of Capital 

O. Net Position 

P.  Interfund Transaction 

Q. Operating Revenues and Expenses 

R.  Accounting Estimates 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

S. Budgetary Process 

NOTE 3 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 3 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - continued

NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued 

Deposits



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 4 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - continued 

Investments

Interest Rate Risk – 

Credit Risk –

Concentration of Credit Risk – 

Fair Value Measurement – 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 5 – PROPERTY TAXES 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 6 – MUNICIPAL INCOME TAX 

NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Capital assets being depreciated:



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS- continued

NOTE 8 – RECEIVABLES 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

Net Pension Liability 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

net pension 
liability

Plan Description – Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Group A Group B Group C 

State and Local State and Local State and Local

Age and Service Requirements:  Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements:

Formula: Formula: Formula:

Funding Policy

  State 
and Local 

2017 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates 

2017 Actual Contribution Rates 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Plan Description – Ohio Police & Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Funding Policy

  Police  
2017 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates 

2017 Actual Contribution Rates 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Actuarial Assumptions – OPERS 

Assumptions 
December 31, 2016 

Valuation
December 31, 2015  

Valuation 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Discount Rate.



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate.

Actuarial Assumptions – OP&F 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Discount Rate.



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - continued

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate.

Changes Between Measurement Date and Report Date. 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS—continued

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 10 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS—continued

NOTE 11 – OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Compensated Absences 

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation 

Accumulated Unpaid Sick Leave 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11 – OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS—continued

Deferred Compensation 

NOTE 12 – CAPITAL LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 13 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

Property and Liability Insurance 

Health Insurance 

GASB Statement No. 10, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk 
Financing and Related Insurance Issues,” GASB Statement No. 30 “Risk 
Management Omnibus,” 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 14 – LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS  



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 14 – LONG -TERM OBLIGATIONS—continued



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 15 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

NOTE 16 – FUND BALANCES

Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 16 – FUND BALANCES—continued 

Nonspendable:

Restricted for:

Total Restricted

Committed to:

Total committed

Assigned to:

Total assigned

Unassigned (deficit)

Total Fund Balance

Minimum Fund Balance Policy 

NOTE 17 – CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 17 – CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS—continued

NOTE 18 – CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS 

Encumbrances



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 19 – RELATED ORGANIZATIONS 

Hilliard Arts Council Corporation 

Norwich Township 

Central Ohio Interoperable Radio System 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 20 – TAX ABATEMENTS 

•

•

NOTE 21 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Federal and State Grants 

Litigation

NOTE 22 – DEFICT FUND BALANCE 



Required Supplementary 
Information





CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional Pension Plan
Last Four Years (1) (2)

2017 2016 2015 2014

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.04757% 0.04738% 0.04389% 0.04389%

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 10,802,655$ 8,206,216$ 5,293,745$     5,174,177$

City's Covered Payroll 6,203,208$ 5,895,875$ 5,381,025$     5,221,423$

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
  as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 174.15% 139.19% 98.38% 99.10%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
  Total Pension Liability 77.25% 81.08% 86.45% 86.36%

(1) Information prior to 2014 is not available. The City will continue to present information for years available until
      a full ten-year trend is compiled.

(2) Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the City's measurement date, which is the prior year-end.

Notes to Schedule:

Change in assumptions. In 2016, a five-year experience study was completed on the period January 1, 2011 through
December 31, 2015. The OPERS Board adopted changes to both the demographic and economic assumptions as a
result of the study. The most notable change in demographic assumptions is an increase in life expectancy of the 
members and the most notiable change in economic assumptions is a reduction in the actuarially assumed rate of return
from 8.0% down to 7.5% for the defined benefit investments. The new assumptions are included in the 2016 actuarial
valuation.



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (1)
Last Four Years (2)(3)

2017 2016 2015 2014

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.2069% 0.2156% 0.2066% 0.2066%

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 13,104,630$    13,868,027$    10,704,384$     10,063,612$

City's Covered Payroll 4,974,232$      4,856,900$      4,551,263$       4,248,693$

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
  as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 263.45% 285.53% 235.20% 236.86%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
  Total Pension Liability 68.36% 66.77% 72.20% 73.00%

(1) Only the City's police force participates in the fund.

(2) Information prior to 2014 is not available. The City will continue to present information for years available until
      a full ten-year trend is compiled.

(3) Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the City's measurement date, which is the prior year-end.



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of City Contributions
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional Pension Plan
Last Seven Years (1)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contributions 866,257$ 744,385$ 707,505$ 645,723$     678,785$

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
  Required Contributions (866,257)$ (744,385)$ (707,505)$ (645,723)$  (678,785)$

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$ -$ -$ -$  -$

City Covered Payroll 6,663,515$ 6,203,208$ 5,895,875$ 5,381,025$ 5,221,423$

Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 13.00% 12.00% 12.00% 12.00% 13.00%

2012 2011

Contractually Required Contributions 678,683$ 577,815$

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
  Required Contributions (678,683)$ (577,815)$

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$ -$

City Covered Payroll 6,786,830$ 5,778,150$

Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 10.00% 10.00%

(1) Information prior to 2011 is not available. 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of City Contributions
Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (1)
Last Seven Years (2)

2017 2016* 2015 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contributions 984,253$    945,104$    922,811$    864,740$     674,834$

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
  Required Contributions (984,253) (945,104) (922,811) (864,740) (674,834)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$ -$ -$ -$  -$

City Covered Payroll 5,180,279$ 4,974,232$ 4,856,900$ 4,551,263$ 4,248,693$

Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 19.00% 19.00% 19.00% 19.00% 15.88%

2012 2011

Contractually Required Contributions 544,150$ 511,223$

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
  Required Contributions (544,150) (511,223)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$ -$

City Covered Payroll 4,267,843$ 4,009,592$

Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 12.75% 12.75%

(1) Only the City's police force participates in the fund.
(2) Information prior to 2011 is not available. 
* Amounts restated based on revised information.



Supplementary Information
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Schedules



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Major Fund Descriptions 

General Fund

Construction Inspection Fund

Police Benevolent Fund

Major Special Revenue Funds: 

Street Maintenance and Repair Fund

Street Improvement Municipal Tax Fund

Water and Sewer Revenue Fund

Tax Increment Financing Fund 

Major Capital Project Fund: 

Capital Improvement Municipal Tax Fund 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Property and other local taxes 1,551,818$      1,551,818$      1,532,877$      (18,941)$          
Municipal income taxes 13,277,951      16,777,951      19,207,845      2,429,894        
Intergovernmental 579,656           579,656           524,489           (55,167)            
Charges for services 4,033,766        4,033,766        3,427,944        (605,822)          
Licenses and permits 951,100           951,100           1,353,816        402,716           
Fines and forfeitures 350,000           350,000           261,207           (88,793)            
Investment income 78,000             78,000             319,892           241,892           
Miscellaneous 79,000 79,000 115,173 36,173

Total revenues 20,901,291 24,401,291 26,743,243 2,341,952

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Mayor:

Personal services 212,108           212,108           205,361           6,747               
Contractual services 7,400               7,400               -                       7,400               
Materials and supplies 2,093 2,093 994 1,099

Total Mayor 221,601 221,601 206,355 15,246

City Council:
Personal services 322,587           322,587           271,420           51,167             
Contractual services 41,394             41,394             24,533             16,861             
Materials and supplies 142,405 142,405 101,575 40,830

Total City Council 506,386 506,386 397,528 108,858

Clerk of Courts:
Personal services 245,199           245,199           223,256           21,943             
Contractual services 133,795           133,795           131,488           2,307               
Materials and supplies 14,877 14,877 13,787 1,090

Total Clerk of Courts 393,871 393,871 368,531 25,340

Law:
Personal services 338,328           338,328           312,457           25,871             
Contractual services 121,718           121,718           67,163             54,555             
Materials and supplies 8,699 8,699 7,682 1,017

Total Law 468,745$  468,745$  387,302$  81,443$
(continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund

(continued)
Variance

Actual From Final
Original Final Amounts Budget

Finance:
Personal services 741,828$         741,828$         704,088$         37,740$           
Contractual services 97,500             97,500             84,961             12,539             
Materials and supplies 59,717             59,717             36,038             23,679             
Other 110,709 110,709 58,079 52,630

Total Finance 1,009,754 1,009,754 883,166 126,588

Economic Development:
Personal services 194,651           194,651           110,070           84,581             
Contractual services 42,120             42,120             -                       42,120             
Materials and supplies 19,017 19,017 14,171 4,846

Total Economic Development 255,788 255,788 124,241 131,547

City Clerk:
Personal services 300                  300                  -                       300                  
Contractual services 3,100               3,100               1,329               1,771               
Materials and supplies 13,332 13,332 12,947 385

Total City Clerk 16,732 16,732 14,276 2,456

Human Resources:
Personal services 408,008           408,008           366,396           41,612             
Contractual services 124,085           124,085           100,163           23,922             
Materials and supplies 14,650 14,650 14,239 411

Total Human Resources 546,743 546,743 480,798 65,945

Public Building and Land:
Personal services 360,245           360,245           355,399           4,846               
Contractual services 101,674           101,674           95,811             5,863               
Materials and supplies 49,714             49,714             39,374             10,340             
Utilities 607,705 607,705 605,365 2,340

Total Public Building and Land 1,119,338 1,119,338 1,095,949 23,389

Information Technology:
Personal services 403,417           403,417           280,344           123,073           
Contractual services 724,484           724,484           686,459           38,025             
Materials and supplies 27,798 27,798 23,939 3,859

Total Information Technology 1,155,699$  1,155,699$  990,742$  164,957$
(continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund

(continued)
Variance

Actual From Final
Original Final Amounts Budget

Boards and Commissions:
Personal services 111,710$         111,710$         103,766$         7,944$             
Materials and supplies 57,000 57,000 30,874 26,126

Total Boards and Commissions 168,710 168,710 134,640 34,070

General Administrative:
Personal services 122,218           122,218           73,218             49,000             
Contractual services 840,582           840,583           767,286           73,297             
Materials and supplies 35,950             35,950             27,329             8,621               
Other 3,000,770 3,685,144 2,049,138 1,636,006

Total General Administrative 3,999,520 4,683,895 2,916,971 1,766,924

Total General Government 9,862,887 10,547,262 8,000,499 2,546,763

Security of Persons and Property:
Police:

Personal services 9,112,100        9,315,100        8,602,444        712,656           
Contractual services 977,436           977,436           951,893           25,543             
Materials and supplies 271,070           271,070           251,703           19,367             
Other 300 300 300 -

Total Police 10,360,906 10,563,906 9,806,340 757,566

Total Security of Persons and Property 10,360,906 10,563,906 9,806,340 757,566

Public Health:
County Health District:

Contractual services 260,876 260,876 257,183 3,693
Total County Health District 260,876 260,876 257,183 3,693

Total Public Health 260,876 260,876 257,183 3,693

Leisure Time Activities:
Recreation:

Personal services 2,478,752        2,478,752        2,322,865        155,887           
Contractual services 323,210           323,210           299,917           23,293             
Materials and supplies 435,230           435,230           407,544           27,686             
Utilities 286,897           286,897           285,911           986                  
Other 37,493 37,493 36,163 1,330

Total Recreation 3,561,582 3,561,582 3,352,400 209,182

Total Leisure Time Activities 3,561,582$  3,561,582$  3,352,400$  209,182$
(continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund

(concluded)
Variance

Actual From Final
Original Final Amounts Budget

Community Environment:
Service/Engineer:

Personal services 755,367$         755,367$         707,852$         47,515$           
Contractual services 2,143,633        2,143,633        2,051,141        92,492             
Materials and supplies 68,179 68,179 38,736 29,443

Total Service/Engineer 2,967,179 2,967,179 2,797,729 169,450

Building Inspection:
Personal services 606,421           606,421           563,824           42,597             
Contractual services 19,133             19,133             8,000               11,133             
Materials and supplies 37,423             37,423             32,401             5,022               
Other 14,000 14,000 - 14,000

Total Building Inspection 676,977 676,977 604,225 72,752

Total Community Environment 3,644,156 3,644,156 3,401,954 242,202

Total Expenditures 27,690,407 28,577,782 24,818,376 3,759,406

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (6,789,116) (4,176,491) 1,924,867 6,101,358

Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of assets 6,000               6,000               10,452             4,452               
Transfers in 309,031           309,031           302,049           (6,982)              
Transfers out - (3,802,049) (3,802,049) -

Total other financing sources (uses) 315,031 (3,487,018) (3,489,548) (2,530)

Net change in fund balance (6,474,085)       (7,663,509)       (1,564,681)       6,098,828$      

Fund balance, beginning of year 11,455,276      11,455,276      11,455,276      
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 3,294,282 3,294,282 3,294,282
Fund balance, end of year 8,275,473$  7,086,049$  13,184,877$

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Construction Inspection Fund(1)

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Charges for services 440,000$         440,000$         634,389$         194,389$         
Miscellaneous 5,000 5,000 1,864 (3,136)

Total revenues 445,000 445,000 636,253 191,253

Expenditures
Current:

Community Environment:
Personal services 345,618           345,618           321,757           23,861             
Contractual services 537,759           537,759           472,558           65,201             
Materials and supplies 31,805             31,805             4,265               27,540             
Other 15,000 15,000 - 15,000

Total expenditures 930,182 930,182 798,580 131,602

Net change in fund balance (485,182)          (485,182)          (162,327)          322,855$         

Fund balance, beginning of year 618,076           618,076           618,076           
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 140,103 140,103 140,103
Fund balance, end of year 272,997$  272,997$  595,852$

(1) For GAAP reporting, this fund is combined with the General Fund.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Police Benevolent Fund(1)

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Charges for services 5,000$             12,000$           11,374$           (626)$               
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 10,606 606

Total revenues 15,000 22,000 21,980 (20)

Expenditures
Current:

Security of Persons and Property:
Contractual services 1,329               31,329             24,929             6,400               
Materials and supplies 3,610               24,210             23,412             798                  
Other 74 74 - 74

Total expenditures 5,013 55,613 48,341 7,272

Net change in fund balance 9,987               (33,613)            (26,361)            7,252$             

Fund balance, beginning of year 29,047             29,047             29,047             
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 5,013 5,013 5,013
Fund balance, end of year 44,047$  447$  7,699$

(1) For GAAP reporting, this fund is combined with the General Fund.

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Street Maintenance and Repair Fund

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental 1,350,500$      1,350,500$      1,516,279$      165,779$         
Investment income 600                  600                  9,415               8,815               
Miscellaneous 40,000 40,000 47,171 7,171

Total revenues 1,391,100 1,391,100 1,572,865 181,765

Expenditures
Current:

Transportation:
Personal services 798,175           798,175           672,735           125,440           
Contractual services 379,004           379,004           331,525           47,479             
Materials and supplies 1,135,398 1,135,398 712,065 423,333

Total expenditures 2,312,577 2,312,577 1,716,325 596,252

Net change in fund balance (921,477)          (921,477)          (143,460)          778,017$         

Fund balance, beginning of year 746,737           746,737           746,737           
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 619,378 619,378 619,378
Fund balance, end of year 444,638$  444,638$  1,222,655$

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Street Improvement Municipal Tax Fund

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Municipal income taxes 2,581,223$      2,581,223$      2,953,714$      372,491$         
Miscellaneous - - 2,480 2,480

Total revenues 2,581,223 2,581,223 2,956,194 374,971

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Contractual services 74,000             74,000             59,188             14,812             
Other 100,000 236,875 223,407 13,468

Total General Government 174,000 310,875 282,595 28,280

Transportation:
Contractual services 979,973           979,973           920,276           59,697             
Capital outlay 2,228,770 2,228,770 2,188,453 40,317

Total Transportation 3,208,743 3,208,743 3,108,729 100,014

Debt Service 300,000 300,000 299,950 50

Total expenditures 3,682,743 3,819,618 3,691,274 128,344

Net change in fund balance (1,101,520)       (1,238,395)       (735,080)          503,315$         

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,829,750        1,829,750        1,829,750        
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 527,743 527,743 527,743
Fund balance, end of year 1,255,973$  1,119,098$  1,622,413$

Budgeted Amounts

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Water and Sewer Revenue Fund

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Charges for services 1,920,000$      1,920,000$      1,794,864$      (125,136)$        
Miscellaneous 150,000 150,000 9,756 (140,244)

Total revenues 2,070,000 2,070,000 1,804,620 (265,380)

Expenditures
Current:

Basic Utility Services:
Personal services 1,327,723        1,327,723        1,167,881        159,842           
Contractual services 651,126           651,126           402,926           248,200           
Materials and supplies 192,335           192,335           130,622           61,713             
Capital outlay 808,587           808,587           489,963           318,624           
Utilities 116,570           116,570           106,810           9,760               
Other 10,000 10,000 - 10,000

Total Basic Utility Services 3,106,341 3,106,341 2,298,202 808,139

Debt Service 290,000 290,000 289,817 183

Total expenditures 3,396,341 3,396,341 2,588,019 808,322

Net change in fund balance (1,326,341)       (1,326,341)       (783,399)          542,942$         

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,370,313        1,370,313        1,370,313        
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 598,215 598,215 598,215
Fund balance, end of year 642,187$  642,187$  1,185,129$

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
TIF Fund

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Payment in lieu of taxes -$                     4,460,000$      7,201,942$      2,741,942$      
Intergovernmental - 227,000 220,072 (6,928)

Total revenues - 4,687,000 7,422,014 2,735,014

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Other - 1,638,300 1,633,350 4,950

Total General Government - 1,638,300 1,633,350 4,950

Transportation:
Contractual services 4,118               4,118               4,118               -                       
Other - 2,676,500 2,675,242 1,258

Total Transportation 4,118 2,680,618 2,679,360 1,258

Debt Service 1,500,000 1,939,000 1,938,269 731

Total expenditures 1,504,118 6,257,918 6,250,979 6,939

Net change in fund balance (1,504,118)       (1,570,918)       1,171,035        2,741,953$      

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,990,484        2,990,484        2,990,484        
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 4,117 4,117 4,117
Fund balance, end of year 1,490,483$  1,423,683$  4,165,636$

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Capital Improvement Municipal Tax Fund

Variance
Actual From Final

Original Final Amounts Budget

Revenues
Municipal income taxes 6,328,058$      6,328,058$      7,384,285$      1,056,227$      
Intergovernmental -                       2,000,000        23,123             (1,976,877)       
Licenses and permits -                       936,000           422,000           (514,000)          
Miscellaneous 12,000 12,000 35,800 23,800

Total revenues 6,340,058 9,276,058 7,865,208 (1,410,850)

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Contractual services 478,348           379,998           290,102           89,896             
Capital outlay 1,115,529        1,213,879        1,016,338        197,541           
Other 200,000 1,409,750 1,389,013 20,737

Total General Government 1,793,877 3,003,627 2,695,453 308,174

Security of Persons and Property:
Capital outlay 339,901 339,901 312,550 27,351

Total Security of Persons and Property 339,901 339,901 312,550 27,351

Leisure Time Activities:
Capital outlay 3,781,220 4,211,820 3,378,503 833,317

Total Leisure Time Activities 3,781,220 4,211,820 3,378,503 833,317

Community Environment:
Capital outlay 2,856,056 756,056 584,207 171,849

Total Community Environment 2,856,056 756,056 584,207 171,849

Basic Utility Services:
Contractual services 394,503           394,503           124,035           270,468           
Capital outlay 2,838,911 2,838,911 1,565,394 1,273,517

Total Basic Utility Services 3,233,414 3,233,414 1,689,429 1,543,985

Transportation:
Contractual services 634,191           634,191           75,972             558,219           
Capital outlay 3,739,873 5,739,873 5,686,014 53,859

Total Transportation 4,374,064$  6,374,064$  5,761,986$  612,078$
(continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Capital Improvement Municipal Tax Fund

(concluded)
Variance

Actual From Final
Original Final Amounts Budget

Debt Service 4,200,000$  10,809,000$  10,804,033$  4,967$

Total expenditures 20,578,532 28,727,882 25,226,161 3,501,721

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (14,238,474) (19,451,824) (17,360,953) 2,090,871

Other financing sources
Sale of assets -                       -                       700                  700                  
Issuance of bonds -                       4,655,000        4,655,000        -                       
Premiums -                       453,700           453,669           (31)                   
Transfers in 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 -

Total other financing sources 3,500,000 8,608,700 8,609,369 669

Net change in fund balance (10,738,474)     (10,843,124)     (8,751,584)       2,091,540$      

Fund balance, beginning of year 7,746,791        7,746,791        7,746,791        
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 3,321,223 3,321,223 3,321,223
Fund balance, end of year 329,540$  224,890$  2,316,430$

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Budgeted Amounts



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Nonmajor Fund Descriptions 

County Municipal Motor Vehicle Tax Fund

Park Maintenance Fund

Police Fund

Mayor’s Court Computer Fund

General Government Grants Fund

Heritage Trail Dog Park Fund

Storm Water Utility Fund 



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO 
Nonmajor Fund Descriptions 

Mayor’s Court Fund

Escrow Fund 
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CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
County Municipal Motor Vehicle Tax Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental 2,330,000$      2,492,883$      162,883$         
Investment income 200 3,266 3,066

Total revenues 2,330,200 2,496,149 165,949

Expenditures
Current:

Transportation:
Contractual services 223,917           193,222           30,695             
Materials and supplies 130,657           61,409             69,248             
Capital outlay 2,600,000 2,600,000 -

Total expenditures 2,954,574 2,854,631 99,943

Net change in fund balance (624,374)          (358,482)          265,892$         

Fund balance, beginning of year 570,085           570,085           
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 114,573 114,573
Fund balance, end of year 60,284$  326,176$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Park Maintenance Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental 398,000$         -$                     (398,000)$       
Charges for services 402,000           273,403           (128,597)          
Licenses and permits 100,000           112,930           12,930             
Miscellaneous - 318 318

Total revenues 900,000 386,651 (513,349)

Expenditures
Current:

Leisure Time Activities:
Contractual services 25,300             25,300             -                       
Materials and supplies 10,000             9,042               958                  
Capital outlay 258,975           237,928           21,047             

Transportation:
Capital outlay 785,620 785,620 -

Total expenditures 1,079,895 1,057,890 22,005

Deficiencies of revenues under expenditures (179,895) (671,239) (491,344)

Other financing sources
Issuance of debt 234,250 - (234,250)

Total other financing sources 234,250 - (234,250)

Net change in fund balance 54,355             (671,239)          (725,594)$       

Fund balance, beginning of year 414,442           414,442           
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 300,295 300,295
Fund balance, end of year 769,092$  43,498$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Police Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures 20,050$           39,173$           19,123$           
Investment income - 103 103

Total revenues 20,050 39,276 19,226

Expenditures
Current:

Security of Persons and Property:
Contractual services 2,000               2,000               -                       
Materials and supplies 379                  -                       379                  
Other 57,593 56,786 807

Total expenditures 59,972 58,786 1,186

Net change in fund balance (39,922)            (19,510)            20,412$           

Fund balance, beginning of year 16,756             16,756             
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 42,672 42,672
Fund balance, end of year 19,506$  39,918$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Mayor's Court Computer Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures 20,000$  15,581$  (4,419)$

Expenditures
Current:

General Government:
Contractual services 15,000             10,000             5,000               
Materials and supplies 27,915             22,660             5,255               
Capital outlay 24,585 4,586 19,999

Total expenditures 67,500 37,246 30,254

Net change in fund balance (47,500)            (21,665)            25,835$           

Fund balance, beginning of year 44,499             44,499             
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 14,501 14,501
Fund balance, end of year 11,500$  37,335$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
General Government Grants Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental 830,000$  621,114$  (208,886)$

Expenditures
Current:

Security of Persons and Property:
Contractual services 84,263 80,220 4,043

Total Security of Persons and Property 84,263 80,220 4,043

Leisure Time Activities:
Capital outlay 62,964 62,964 -

Total Leisure Time Activities 62,964 62,964 -

Transportation:
Contractual services 43,850 40,000 3,850

Total Transportation: 43,850 40,000 3,850

Total expenditures 191,077 183,184 7,893

Net change in fund balance 638,923           437,930           (200,993)$       

Fund balance, beginning of year (748,220)          (748,220)          
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 110,577 110,577
Fund balance, end of year 1,280$  (199,713)$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Heritage Trail Dog Park Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Miscellaneous 1,000$  -$  (1,000)$

Net change in fund balance 1,000               -                       (1,000)$            

Fund balance, beginning of year 100 100
Fund balance, end of year 1,100$  100$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
 Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-GAAP) Basis
Storm Water Utility Fund

Final Variance
Budgeted Actual From Final
Amounts Amounts Budget

Revenues
Charges of services 1,018,800$      1,049,738$      30,938$           
Miscellaneous 100,000 23,652 (76,348)

Total revenues 1,118,800 1,073,390 (45,410)

Expenditures
Current:

Basic Utility Services:
Personal services 655,023           569,241           85,782             
Contractual services 565,271           271,272           293,999           
Materials and supplies 24,391 19,589 4,802

Total expenditures 1,244,685 860,102 384,583

Net change in fund balance (125,885)          213,288           339,173$         

Fund balance, beginning of year 41,650             41,650             
Prior year encumbrances appropriated 275,159 275,159
Fund balance, end of year 190,924$  530,097$

Year Ended December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Mayor's
Court Escrow Total

Assets
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents -$                420,420$     420,420$
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts 24,732         -                  24,732         
Accounts receivable - 23,753 23,753

Total assets 24,732$  444,173$  468,905$

Liabilities
Due to other governments -$                404,577$     404,577$
Deposits held and due to others 24,732 39,596 64,328

Total liabilities 24,732$  444,173$  468,905$

December 31, 2017



CITY OF HILLIARD, OHIO
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deductions 2017
Mayor's Court

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts 69,960$  323,347$  368,575$  24,732$

Liabilities
Deposits held and due to others 69,960$  323,347$  368,575$  24,732$

Escrow
Assets

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 535,550$     3,208,084$   3,323,214$   420,420$        
Accounts receivable 12,981 23,753 12,981 23,753

Total assets 548,531$  3,231,837$  3,336,195$  444,173$

Liabilities
Due to other governments 508,935$ 1,512,868$ 1,617,226$ 404,577$        
Deposits held and due to others 39,596 1,718,969 1,718,969 39,596

Total liabilities 548,531$  3,231,837$  3,336,195$  444,173$

Total - All Agency Funds
Assets

Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents 535,550$     3,208,084$   3,323,214$   420,420$        
Cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts 69,960         323,347        368,575        24,732            
Accounts receivable 12,981 23,753 12,981 23,753

Total assets 618,491$  3,555,184$  3,704,770$  468,905$

Liabilities
Due to other governments 508,935$ 1,512,868$ 1,617,226$ 404,577$        
Deposits held and due to others 109,556 2,042,316 2,087,544 64,328

Total liabilities 618,491$  3,555,184$  3,704,770$  468,905$

Year Ended December 31, 2017
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Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City's financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader understand and
assess the factors affecting the City's ability to generate its most significant
local revenue sources, the income and property taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

Economic and Demographic Information
These schedules offer economic and demographic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the City's financial activities
take place and to provide information that facilitates comparisons of financial
information over time and among governments.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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Capital Street
Improvement Improvement Percentage

General Municipal Tax Municipal Tax Increase/
Year Fund Fund Fund Total (Decrease)

2008 10,204,465     4,081,786       2,040,893 16,327,144 18.28%

2009 11,496,626     4,083,246       753,112 16,332,984 0.04%

2010 12,165,853     4,014,340       527,842 16,708,035 2.30%

2011 12,184,246     4,341,568       840,456 17,366,270 3.94%

2012 13,395,426     4,633,040       503,694 18,532,160 6.71%

2013 14,040,629     5,057,600       1,200,169 20,298,398 9.53%

2014 15,151,065     5,578,415       1,535,563 22,265,043 9.69%

2015 16,996,835     6,326,264       1,981,958 25,305,057 13.65%

2016 18,061,105     6,834,152       2,442,267 27,337,524 8.03%

2017 18,133,490     6,954,543       2,738,843 27,826,876 1.79%

Source: City Income Tax Department

(1) Net of refunds.  The City levies a municipal income tax of 2.0 percent.  This rate
      has been the same for all ten years presented.

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Income Tax Revenue Fund Distribution (1)

Last Ten Years 
(cash basis of accounting)
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Percentage Percentage
Number of of Total Number of of Total

Withholding Withholding Withholding Withholding
Range of Withholding Amount Accounts Revenue Accounts Revenue

$500,001 and higher 6 32.69% 3 24.38%

$300,001 - 500,000 3 5.28% 3 7.64%

$100,001 - 300,000 16 12.20% 9 7.89%

$55,001 - 100,000 35 12.59% 22 12.86%

Total 62.76% 52.77%

All Others 37.24% 47.23%

Total Withholding Accounts 100.00% 100.00%

Source: City Income Tax Department

2017 2008

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Principal Income Taxpayers - Withholding Accounts

Current Year and Nine Years Prior
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City of Hilliard
Tax Hilliard City School Franklin Metropolitan Norwich Vocational
Year General Fund District County Library Township School Total

2008 1.60$             82.79$       18.02$    2.20$ 17.50$   1.30$       123.41$

2009 1.60 82.85 18.07 2.20 17.50 1.30         123.52 

2010 1.60 82.95 18.07 2.80 17.50 1.30         124.22 

2011 1.60 89.35 18.07 2.80 17.50 1.60         130.92 

2012 1.60 89.45 18.47 2.80 17.50 1.60         131.42 

2013 1.60 89.45 18.47 2.80 21.62 1.60         135.54 

2014 1.60 89.55 18.47 2.80 21.62 1.60         135.64 

2015 1.60 89.55 18.47 2.80 21.62 1.60         135.64 

2016 1.60 94.35 18.47 2.80 21.62 1.60         140.44 

2017 1.60 93.75 18.92 2.80 21.60 1.60         140.27 

Source:  Franklin County Auditor

(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Last Ten Years 
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Percentage Percentage
Total of Total Total of Total 

Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation

Villages at Britton Ltd 16,450,010$ 1 1.64%

MCI International Inc. 10,902,930 2 1.09%

LSREF3 Bravo Ohio LLC 9,975,000 3 1.00%

M-BM LLC 8,664,670 4 0.87%

One Mill Run LP 6,215,450 5 0.62%

PPOS 17 LLC 5,670,010 6 0.57%

Riggins Road LLC 5,215,000 7 0.52%

AEP Ohio Transmission Company Inc. 4,755,750 8 0.47%

National Retail Properties LP 4,550,010 9 0.45%

Crystal Lake Apartments 3,830,300 10 0.38% 3,160,620$ 6 0.37%

G&I VI Heritage Green LLC 7,238,000 1 0.85%

Trueman LP 4,151,560 2 0.49%

Talcott III Mill Run LLC 3,964,780 3 0.47%

CSE Hilliard LLC 3,436,090 4 0.40%

Tremont Club LLC 3,350,020 5 0.39%

Cadlerocks Hilliard 2,975,000 7 0.35%

First Industrial LP 2,529,180 8 0.30%

Compuserve, Inc. 2,237,310 9 0.26%

Clearview Hilliard LP 2,173,790 10 0.26%

Total Top 10 Real Property 76,229,130 7.61% 35,216,350 4.14%

All Others 925,413,930 92.39% 816,613,720 95.86%

Total Real Property Assessed Valuation 1,001,643,060$ 100.00% 851,830,070$ 100.00%

Source: Franklin County Auditor

2008

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Principal Property Tax Payers - Real Property

Current Year and Nine Years Prior

2017
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Total Current Percent of Delinquent 
Collection Tax Tax Current Levy Tax Total Tax 

Year Levy (1) (2) Collections (1) (3) Collected (3) Collections Collections

2008 1,458,263$   1,307,442$           89.66% 32,214$        1,339,656$

2009 1,431,361     1,365,022             95.37% 65,393          1,430,415    

2010 1,473,382     1,456,360             98.84% 51,583          1,507,943    

2011 1,463,918     1,443,836             98.63% 26,067          1,469,903    

2012 1,417,184     1,401,052             98.86% 23,016          1,424,068    

2013 1,449,224     1,199,654             82.78% 36,053          1,235,707    

2014 1,365,550     1,466,149             107.37% 27,364          1,493,513    

2015 1,387,814     1,295,817             93.37% 29,743          1,325,560    

2016 1,429,422     1,523,391             106.57% 31,900          1,555,291    

2017 1,481,320     1,433,243             96.75% 29,816          1,463,059    

Source: Franklin County Auditor

(1)  State reimbursement of rollback and homestead exemptions are included
(2)  Amounts listed include penalties and interest
(3)  The County does not identify delinquent collections by the year for which the tax was levied.

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Years
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City of Hilliard, Ohio
Computation of All Direct and Overlapping Governmental Debt

December 31, 2017

Percentage Amount
Applicable   Applicable

Debt to the City of to the City
Jurisdiction Outstanding Hilliard (1) of Hilliard

Direct

  City of Hilliard

        Loans Payable 2,980,425$           2,980,425$        

        General Obligation Bonds 54,155,568           54,155,568        

        Capital Leases 5,331,545             5,331,545          

Total Direct Debt 62,467,538 100.00% 62,467,538        

Overlapping Subdivisions

  Hilliard City School District 147,555,006 37.42% 55,215,083        

  Dublin City School District 124,286,104 0.07% 87,000               

  Franklin County 221,125,000 3.49% 7,717,263          

  Solid Waste Authority of Central Ohio 49,545,000 3.33% 1,649,849          

Total Overlapping Debt 542,511,110         64,669,195        

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt 604,978,648$       127,136,733$    

Source: Franklin County Auditor

(1) Percentages determined by dividing each overlapping subdivision's assessed valuation
      within the City by the subdivision's total assessed valuation.

Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City.  This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of 
those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of the City.
This process recognizes that, when considering the City's ability to issue and repay 
long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should
be taken into account.
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Estimated Ratio of Net
Net Actual Value Bonded Debt Net Bonded

Collection Bonded of Taxable to Estimated Debt Per
Year Debt Property (2) Population (1) Actual Value Capita

2008 38,994,698$ 2,484,856,348$ 28,850          1.57% 1,352$         

2009 53,372,658     2,546,552,298    28,927          2.10% 1,845           

2010 50,786,564     2,518,873,434    28,935          2.02% 1,755           

2011 55,994,999     2,429,940,903    29,250          2.30% 1,914           

2012 55,859,717     2,428,619,280    28,524          2.30% 1,958           

2013 53,129,330     2,422,359,320    28,595          2.19% 1,858           

2014 49,772,640     2,494,013,760    28,723          2.00% 1,733           

2015 52,679,797     2,572,470,891    28,952          2.05% 1,820           

2016 53,507,370     2,727,161,069    29,331          1.96% 1,824           

2017 54,155,568     2,980,022,114    34,631          1.82% 1,564           

(1) Source:  "Population Estimates,"  published by the Mid Ohio Regional Planning Commission
(2) Source:  Franklin County Auditor

Note:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Estimated

Last Ten Years
Actual Value and General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita
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Total Total Assessed
Personal Per Capita School Unemployment Property

Year Population (1) Income (2) Income (5) Enrollment (6) Rate (3) Value (4)

2008 28,850 1,100,022$ 38,129 15,136 6.1% 864,594,107$

2009 28,927 1,106,226 38,242 15,523 8.8% 886,597,163

2010 28,935 1,112,464 38,447 15,634 7.6% 876,911,630

2011 29,250 1,175,499 40,188 15,689 6.3% 845,321,580

2012 28,524 1,218,773 42,728 15,726 5.4% 844,817,040

2013 28,595 1,254,377 43,867 15,758 5.2% 842,360,170

2014 28,723 1,289,720 44,902 15,864 3.7% 867,384,000

2015 28,952 1,348,295 46,570 16,045 3.4% 893,388,940

2016 29,331 1,399,822 47,725 16,059 3.4% 945,673,170

2017 34,631 N/A N/A 16,290 3.3% 1,031,189,260

Source: (1) "Population Estimates," published by the Mid Ohio Regional Planning Commission
(2) Computation of per capita personal income multiplied by population(in thousands)
(3) Ohio Labor Market Information
(4) Franklin County Auditor
(5) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Columbus MSA
(6) Hilliard City School District

N/A - Information not available

City of Hilliard, Ohio 
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Years 
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Percentage Percentage
Number of of Total Number of of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Hilliard City Schools 1,635      1 6.41% 1,792     1 9.70%

Cellco Partnership dba Verizon 1,553      2 6.09%

Sedgwick Claims Mgmt Inc. 871        3 3.41%

BMW Financial Services 680        4 2.66% 522        2 2.83%

Echosphere LLC 501        5 1.96% 448        3 2.43%

Micro Center Inc. 325        6 1.27% 335        5 1.81%

R. E. Rich Family Holding Corp. 272        7 1.07% 246        6 1.33%

Verizon Business Network Services 253 8 0.99% 416        4 2.25%

Advanced Drainage Systems 175        9 0.69% 97          10 0.53%

City of Hilliard 155        10 0.61%

Baesman Painting Corp 142        8 0.77%

TALX UCM Services 242        7 1.31%

Norwich Township 98          9 0.53%

Total Employees 6,420 25.16% 4,338 23.49%

All Other Employers 19,101 74.84% 14,131 76.51%

Total Employment within the City 25,521 100.00% 18,469 100.00%

Source:  City Income Tax Department

City of Hilliard, Ohio
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Prior

2017 2008
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